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Healthcare Locums Limited

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Group aims to be a market leader working closely with local health authorities and private healthcare
providers to deliver quality workforce solutions and help them achieve their objectives of delivering world
class hesithcare services.

Strategy

The Group's strategy Is to align its service delivery to its cllents, providing healthcare staff to high
standards of clinicat capability. In working with clients the Group develops solutions to deliver
managemaent control and workforce transparency enabling our clients to deploy their workforce efficiently
and cost effectively.

In the UK the NHS Trusts represent a large part of the Group’s market, supplemented by local authorities
and privete providers. The UK Group has alignad its service delivery to the NHS through the various
framework agreements and each of its aperating divisions has a place on most or all of the available
frameworks. In Australia the healthcare market has a different structure, being approximately half public
and half private.

Across the Group our clients are seeking technology solutions. Cur Managed Services division, HCL
Clarity, offers our clients a range of workforce management solutions developed with our technology
partner Skillstream. The Company owns a 50% interest in Skillstream’s health and social care workforce
management soflware which was developed further during the cumrent period. We are able to provide a
fully integrated sclution from e-rostering to agency management. The UK business has a number of Master
Vendor and Neutral Vendor contracts in place and increased the number of these contracts during 2016.

There have been two political developments in the UK that have been considered for this report being
Brexit and the general eiection called for June 2017. The board have discussed the likely impact of both
issues and have concluded that there has been minimal impact to the business up to this point and that
this is likely to centinue to be the case for the immediate future.

Shortly after year end, in January 2017, HCA purchased a braining company, Employ-Ease pty Ltd. The
consideration was an initial fee of $2m with an estimated consideration due June 2017 of $0.5m. This
purchase further cements HCA as one of the top healthcare providers in Australia and continues its growth

trend of recent years.
Business Performance

The Group reported revenue for the year of £186.7m (2015; £184.6m) and the adjusted EBITDA" for the
year was £5.5m (2015: £1.8m).

The reported loss from continuing operations was £1.6m (2015 £4.6m} after exceptional operafing
expenses.

The board monitors performance closely throughout the year. The principat financial indicators for
operations are gross margin per head, contribution per head and gross margin conversion to contribution.

The KP! data as stated above are disclosed in the fable below:

*Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA before exceptional items and management recharges.
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Healthcare Locums Limited

STRATEGIC REPORT [continued)

UK

52 wie 01.01.17 53 w/e 03.01.16
Gross profit per head £000's 82 74
Contribution per head £000’s 28 23
Gross profit conversion to contribution 34% 30%

During 2016 the UK business strategy was to focus on increasing efficiency across sil divisions in order to
improve trading performance in the face of margin pressure within the UK market. Gross profit per head in
operalions increased by 10.8%, while contribution per head went up by 21.7%. Conftribution is defined as
gross profit less divisional costs.

The table befow summarises UK trading performance:

UK - Total 52 w/e 01.01.17 53 wle 03.01.16
£m £m
Revanue 81.7 92.5
Gross profit 16.9 7.1
Gross profit % 20.7% 19.3%
Divisional costs {(11.1) (11.9)
Central costs {6.3) {7.6)
Adjusted EBITDA — UK* {0.5} (2.4)

The board analyses the UK performance into its two principle businesses. First the Agency business which
includes all locum, temporary and permanent supply and second, the technology business which is
branded Clarity. This enables management to monitor the established iocum and permanent recruitment
businesses and the Clarity business which is in the investment phase. The resuits of these two business
sireams are analysed below —

Agency Business 52 wie 53 who
01.0117 03.61.16
£m £m
Revenue 811 g1.8
Gross profit 16.3 16.5
{B5ross profit % 20.1% 18.0%
Pivisional costs (9.8) {t0.8)
Central costs (excl. depreciation & amortisation) (5.9 {7.1}
Adjusted EBITDA ~ UK 06 (1.4}
Clarity Business 52 wie 53 wie
01.01.47 03.01.16
£m £m
Revenue 08 07
Gross profit 0.5 0.6
Gross profit % 98.7% 89.7%
Divisional costs (1.3) {1.1)
Cenlral costs {excl. depreciation & amortisation] (0.4) {0.5)
Adjusted EBITDA ~ UK* (1.1 (1.0}
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Heatfthcare Locums Limited

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Australia
52 wie 01.01.17 53 wie 03.01.16
Gross profit per head £000's 130 123
Adjusted EBITDA per head £0D0's 38 30
Gross profit conversion to adjusted EBITDA 29% 24%

All numbers are presented in pounds sterling.

The Australian business parformed strongly In 2018 and recorded improved performance in all areas of is
business. The core Nursing business saw improved EBITDA year on year of A$2.4m through organic
growth,

The Care business that was purchased mid way through 2015 recorded a full years trading within the
group during 2016 and posted an EBITDA of A$(.7m which is an improvement of AB0.2m.

During the year the Austraiian business won a major contract to supply healthcare staff at defence bases
and similar installations across Australia. This contract went live in November 2016 and is expected to
make & significant contribution in 2017,

The table below summarises trading performance in Australia;

52 wie 01.01.17 53 wie 03.01.16

£m £m
Revenue 115.0 82.1
Gross profit 229 17.4
Gross profit % 19.9% 18.8%
Operaling sxpenses (axcluding depreciation & (16.2) {13.2)
amortisation)
Adjusted EBITDA — Australia 6.7 4.2

Cuapital Structure

Following a ¢apital recrganisation completed in December 2015, the company's capital structure consists
solely of ordinary shares owned by Its parent, Angel Acquisitions Lid.

Further details of the Company's funding structure and the capital can be found in notes 16 and 19 of the
financial statements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Board considers the principal risks facing the business as part of the annual budgeling process.

The principal risks and uncertainties currently judged to have the largest potential impact on the Group’s
financial parformance and reputational standing are described below:
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Healthcare Locums Limited

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

Availabiilty of Finance

The Group is dependent on the continuing support from is parent company, Angel Acquisitions Limited. In
August 2014 the sharehoiders of Angel Acquisitions loaned the Company £16.1m to fund part repayment
of various bank loans and purchased the rernaining loan from the banks. This loan has bean restruciured
at the end of 2016 for a fee of £2.9m which was recognised in the profit and loss accounts and added to
the loan balance. Tha loan is dua for repayment by 31st December 2019 and carries no financial
covenants. The invoice finance facilities that exist in the UK and Australia ensure the Group has adequate
financing and working capital for the foreseeable future.

Relationships with Key Customers

Customer relationships and compliance with contract terms are essential to the Group's performance. In
the UK the majosity of the Group's revenue comaes from the NHS through framework agreements. In
Australia the Group is an approved “Panel” supplier of agency nurses to the public health system. Both
public and private sector contracts in the UK and Australia contain Key Performance indicator targets and
may include termination rights if targets are not met.

Clinical Governance and Compliance

The Group has obligations under contracts, and in some circumstances under legistation, 1o supply locums
to specified standards of clinical capability and to make checks before locums are placed in roles. These
Compliance requirements sre extensive in many cases. Failure to complete and maintain those checks
could lead to legal, financial and reputational consequences.

IT Systems and Security

The Group relies on computer systems to deliver its services to customers. Any material disruption to
these systems will impact revenues, as lost ime for locum supplies cannct be replaced.

Exchange Rate

The Group's operations are located in the UK and Australia. Local revenues are accounted for in local
currency. The presentational currency of the Group is Sterling. Due to the movement of the Australian
dollar against the British pound during the year a gain of £4.1m was recognised in the profit and loss
account.

The Steriing value of the Australian results depends on the exchange rate used to iranslate the results of
overseas operations. Foreign exchange risk is described mare fully in Note 12.

Potential bmpact from Past Events, including Litigation

As described in Note 22, a claim by certain US investors has been filed in the State of New York against
the Company and certain of its former directors and defsult judgement obtained. Whilst the Board has
been advised that it is unfikely any judgement would be recognised as enforceabie in either the UK or
Australia because of a iack of jurisdiction, should this advice be incorrect, an adverse ruling could result in
a material loss for the Group.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

B

S P Burke
Director
27 April 2017
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Healthcare Locums Limited

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Principal Activities

The principal aclivity of the Group Is that of providing workforce solutions to the healthcare and social care
settors, The Board's intention is that this will remain the business of the Group for the foreseeable future.

The Group's trading subsidiary undertakings are listed in Note 31 to the Financial Statements along with
other dormant and non trading members of the group.

Future Developments

Future developments are covered in the Strategic Report.

Dividends

No dividends were paid in the 52 weeks ended 1 January 2017 and the Directors do not propose a final
gividand for that period.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policles

The Group's objectives and policies in respect of financial risk management and associated risks are set
out In Note 19, Financial Instruments.

Disabled Persons

The Group's and the Company's policy is to consider the applications of disabled workers for those
vacancies thal they are able to fill. All necessary assistance with initial training courses is given. Once
empioyed, a career plan is developed so as to ensure suiteble opporiunities for each disabled person.
Arrangsments are made, wheraver possible, for retraining employees who become disabled, to enable
them to perform work ldentified as appropriate to their aptitudes and abilities.

Employee involvement

The Greup's policy is to consult and discuss with employees and employee engagement forums on matters
likely to affect employees' interests, A comorate intranet provides a wide range of information, policies and
procedures for staff to access. Information on matters of concern to employees is given through
information bulletins and reports which seek lo achleve 2 common awareness on the part of all employees
of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group's performance. Employees' interests are aligned
with those of the company through bonus plans.

Going Concern

The Company's and the Group's strategy, business activities and review, together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and financial position are set out in the Strategic Report on
pages 2 to 5. The improved capital structure following the Decamber 2015 reorganisation simplified the
capital and debt for the group which left only a shareholder loan on the balance sheet and all share capital
being owned by the parent tompany who continue to support the company. Together with the UK's £18m
invoice finance facility and the A$20m facllity in Australia, the Group has adequate financing for the
foreseeable future. Principal risks and uncertainties are described on pages 4 t0 5. In addition, the Group
has certain contingent Habilities, as described in Note 22 to these financial statements,

The Group prepares regular business forecasts and moniters its projected cash fiow requirements. The
forecasts ars raviewed by the Board. They are then flexed to reflect more conservative views on revenues
and margins, and take into account management actions which could be takan to contain costs in these
circumsiances, -
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Healthcare Locums Limited

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

These forecasts indicate that the Group plans to operate within its current facilities for the foreseeable
future, being a period of et least twelve months from the date of approval of this financial information. The
forecasts assume no liability in raspect of the US Bigation during the review period, nor in regpect of any of
the other contingent liabilities described in Note 22.

Having taken account of the above, the Dirsctors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the
Group will have access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial
statements.

Directors

The Directors who served during the year and to the date of this report, together with the date they were
appointed if during the year were as follows -

Director Fosition Date of change (if after 3 January 2016}

Peter Sullivan Non-exaecutive Chairman -
Stephen Burke Chief Executive Officer -
Jason Cartwright  Chief Executive Officer Australia -

{an Ketchin Chief Financial Officer Reslgned 277 April 2016
Michael Warren  Chief Financial Officer Appointed 27" April 2016
Mark Phillips Non-executive Director -
Michael Dennis  Non-executive Director -
Daniel Sinclgir Non-exéculive Director -

Directors' Indemnitles and Insurance

Directors and Officers of the Company and iis subsidiarias benefit from Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance cover in respect of legal actions brought against them. In addition, Directors of the Company are
indemnified in accordance with the Company's Articles of Agsociation, to the maximum extent permitted by
law. Neither the insurance rnor the indemnities provide cover where the rslevant Director or Officer has
acted fraudulently or dishonestly. The US litigation, against the Company and its former directors, as
referred to in Note 22, may not be covered under the existing Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance
caver. This is because the Plaintiffs’ arguments revolve around the alleged dishonesty or misleading
coenduct of former directors, None of the current Directors are a party to this claim,

Related Party Transactions

Details of related party transactions, including transactions with close family members of former directors,
are set cut in Note 25 to the financial statements.

Disclosure of Audit Information

As required by Section 418 (2) of the Companies Act 2008, each of the Diractors confirms that, as at the
date this report was approved, se far as each Director is aware there is no relevant audit ifformation of
which the Independent Auditor is unaware and that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant infformation and to establish that the
Independent Auditor is aware of that information.
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Heatlthcare Locums Limited

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

Auditor

In accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resclution is to be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting for the reappointment of Grant Thomton UK LLP as auditors. Marc Summers is the
Senior Statutory Auditor.

Cautionary Statement

A Company's Annual Report is required, among other matiers, to contain a fair review by the Directors of
the Group's business, through & balanced and comprehensive analysis of the development and
performance of the business of the Group and the position of the Group at the year end, consistent with the
size and complexity of the business,. The Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared
only for the shareholders of the Company as a whole, and their sole purpose and use Is to assist
shareholders to exercise their govemance rights. In particular, the Diirectors’ Report, and the Strategic
Report have nat been audited or otherwise independently venfied. The Company and its Directors and
employees are not responsible for any other purpose or use or to any other person in relation to the Annual
Raport.

These Reports and Statements contain indications of fikely future developments and other forward-looking
statements that are subject to risk factors associated with, among other things, the economic and business
circumstances occurring from time 1o time in the countries, sectors and business segments in which the
Group operates. These factors include, but are not limited to, those discussed under Principal Risks and
Uncertainties in the Strategic Report.

Thege and other factors could adversely affect the Group's results, strategy and prospects. Forward-
looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and assumplions. They relate to events andfor depend on
circumstances in the future which could cause actual results and gutcomes to differ materially from those
currently anticipated. No obligafion is assumed to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

G

S P Burke
Diractor
27 April 2017
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Healthcare Locums Limited

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Repart and the financial
staternents in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financia) statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors have elected o prepare the financial statements in accordance with Iintemationa! Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Europsan Unlon. Under company law the directors must
not approve the financtal statements unless they are satisfied that they give & true and fair view of the state
of affairs and prefit or loss of the company and group for that pariod. In preparing these financial
statements, thé directors are required to:

+  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- miake judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

»  ensure IFRSs have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

+  prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis uniess it is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue In business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with réasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them {o ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2008. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The directors confirm that:
«  So far as sach director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s
suditor is unaware; and
+  the directors have taken all the steps that they ought io have taken as directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to estabiish that the company's auditor is
aware of that information.

The directors are responsibie for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

To the best of our knowledge:

- the group financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Uinion, give a rue and fair view of the assels, lisbilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

«  the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the posilion of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whoie, together with a deseription of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face,

By order of the Board:

B )

S P Burke
Director
27 April 2017
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Healthcare Locums Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HEALTHCARE LOCUMS LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements Healthcare Locums Limited for the 52 weeks ended 1 January
2017 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
parent company balance sheet, parent company statement of changes in equity and the related notes.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation of the Group financial
statements is applicable kaw and international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the praparation of the parent
company financial statements is applicable law and Unitad Kingdom Accounting Standards (Dnited
Kingdorm Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS101 *Reduced Disclosure Framework”.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or essume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 8, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they glve a true and
tair view. Our responsibility s 1o audit and express an opinton on the financial statemants in accardance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland). Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reperting
Council's website at www.fro org uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinior on financial statements
In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent
company’s affairs as at 1 January 2017 and of the group's loss and the parent company’s profit
for the 52 weeks then ended;

. the group financial statemenis have been properly prepared in accordance with FRSs as
adopted by the Europaan Union; and
. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with

IFR3s as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are preparad is consistent with the financiaf stataments.
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Heaithcare Locums Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HEALTHCARE LOCUMS LIMITED (continued)

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial stataments; and
. the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable

legal requirements,
Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not idenfified material misstatements in the strategic report or
the directors' report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to repon In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequsate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent company financial staternents are not in agresment with the accounting records and
retums; or

. certain disciosures of directors’ remuneration spacified by law are not made; or

. we have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Moo Seren

Marc Summers, FCA

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Astountants
London

27 April 2017
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Healthcare Locums Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 JANUARY 2017

52 weeks 53 waeks
ended ended
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
Notes £m £rm
Revenue 196.7 184.6
Cost of sales {156.9) {150.1)
Gross profit 398 34.5
Operating expenses {40.8) {37.6)
Highlightad items:
Nat excaptional oparating expenses 8 {0.8) {1.5
Total operating expenses {41.4) {39.1)
Loss from operations 7 {1.6} {4.6)
Finance income 5] - 18.5
Finance expense 8 {0.2) {3.8)
{Loss) / profit before taxation from continuing operations (1.8) 1.1
Tax benefit from continuing operations g 0.2 1.1
{Looss) / profit for the year attributable to the cwners of the
parant {1.6} 12.2
Other comprehensive income:
itemns that may be reclassified subseguently to profit & loss
Translation adjustment (0.8) 1.3
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income {0.8) 1.3
Total comprehensive {loss) / profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the parent (2.4) 13.5

The Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive lncomo has beun prepared on the basis that alf operations are continuing.

The MNotes sra an integral part of these Financial Stataments.
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Healthcare Locums Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 1 JANUARY 2017

1 January 3 January
2017 2018
Notas £m _Em
ABSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 1 10.8 10.6
Other intangible assets 12 23.2 21.8
Property, plant and equipment 13 0.7 0.8
4.5 334
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 a4 28.2
Current tax recehvable - 0.1
Cash and cash equivatents 09 0.6
35.3 28.9
Total assets 60.8 62.3
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 {25.1) {19.0}
Currant tax payable 0.2) -
Current portion of long term borrowings 16 - (1.1}
Provisions 17 {2.8) {1.8)
{27.9) (21.7)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 (21.6) (17.5)
Deferred tax liability 18 (3.0} (3.1)
Provisions 17 (1.1} {1.4)
(25.7) (22.0)
Total liabliities (53.6) (43.7)
TOTAL NET ASSETS 18.2 188
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE
PARENT
Share capital 20 120.9 120.9
Share premium resarve 21 55.2 55.2
Equity & other reserve 1 {19.9) {19.9}
Translation reserve 21 4.6 5.4
Retained loss 21 (144.6) (143.0}
TOTAL EQUITY 16.2 18.6

The Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements,

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 April

%\:&jzig‘ned on {ts behalf by:

$ P Burke
Director
Company number; 04736813
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Healthcare Locums Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 JANUARY 2017

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
£m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)/profit for the year {1.8} 12.2
Adjustrents for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.4 0.5
Amortisation of intangible assets 4.3 28
Finance income - {19.5)
Finance expense 0.2 3.8
Corporation tax credit (0.2) (1.1
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in working
capital 31 {1.3}
Changes in receivables (6.2) (5.4}
Changes in payables and provisions 4.6 2.8
Cash generated fromi{used) in operations 1.5 (3.8
Corporation tax received - 0.2
Net cash flows used in operating activities 1.5 (3.5
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and squipment (0.2) {0.3)
Acguisition of intangible assets {2.2) {4.6)
Net cash (used in) investing activities {2.4) {4.9)
Financing activities
Repayment of borrowings {1.1} -
Invoice finance facility movement 2.2 04
Net cash from financing activities 1.1 0.4
Net increase / (decrease) In cash and cash eguivalents 0.2 (8.0}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.6 86
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 0.1 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.9 0.6

The Notes are an Intagral part of these Financial Statements.
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Healthcare Locums Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity &
Share Share other Translation Retalned

capital premium reserves reserve foss  Total

£m £m £m Em Em Em

Balance at 28 December 2014 107.3 55.2 (14.9) 41  (1582) (3.5
Crdinary shares converted from 8% loan

notes 85 - {3.3) - - 52
Ordinary shares converted from 0% loan

notes 5.1 - (2.8) - - 2.2

Transactions with owners 138 - (6.2) - - 7.4

Profit for the year - - - - 12.2 12.2

Tax equalisation - - 1.2 - - 1.2

Other comprehensive income - - - 13 - 1.3

Balance at 3 January 2016 120.9 85.2 {19.9) 5.4 {143.0) 18.8

Loss for the year - . - . (1.6}  (1.6)

Other comprehensive income - - - (0.8} - {0.8)

Balance at 1 January 2017 120.9 §5.2 (19.9} 46 {144.6) 16.2

Tha Notes are an integral part of these Financial Siatements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Healthcare Locums Lid is a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 {"the
Act”). The registered office is 10 Old Bailey, London EC4M 7NG. The nature of the Group's operations and its
principal activities are set out in the Report of the Directors on page € to 8 and in the Strategic Review on pages 2
to 5.

The primary financial statements and the majority of figures in the notes are presented in Pounds Sterding ("E")
because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. Where it is
censidered useful and appropriate, certain figures for the operations of the Australian business are disclosed in
the notes in Austrafian Dollars ("A$").

Overseas operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in Note 3.

The Group's standard accounting period is mostly 52 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to 31 Decemnber. The
reporting period that ended on 3 January 2016 was 53 weeks. This ensures the statutory reporting timetable is in
line with the management reporting cycle.

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New standards and interpretations currently in issue but not effective, based on EU mandatory effective dates, for
accounting pericds commencing on 1 January 2016 are;

- IFRS 8 Financial Instruments (IASB effective date 1 January 2018}

- IFRS 14 Reguiatory Deferral Accounts (effective 1 January 2016)

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracls with Customers (effective 1 January 2017}

- IFRS 16 Leases {effective 1 January 2019)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Confribution of Assets between an Investor and Iis Associate or
Joint Venture (deferred indefinitely)

- Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (effective 1 January 2017}
- Amentdments to 1AS 7: Disclosure Initiative (effective 1 January 2017)

- Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers {effective 1 January 2018)

Amendments to IFRS 2; Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (effective
January 2018)

Amandments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 financial instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (effective 1
January 2018)

Annual improvements to {FRS 2014-2016 Cycle {Issued 8 December 2016} - Relating to IFRS 1 First ime
edoption of IFRS and JAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures (effective 1 January 2017)

Annual improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 Cycle {Issued 8 December 2016) - Relating to IFRS 12 Disclosure of
interest in other entities (effective 1 January 2018)

- IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign currency fransactions and advance considerations (effective 1 January 2018}
- Amendments 1o IAS 40, Transfers of investment property (effective 1 January 2018)
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of accounting

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union ("EU”).

The Consdlidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for derivative
financial Instruments which are stated at their fair value, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for the assets. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

(b) Basis of consolidation
The Consclidated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial Statements of the Company and entities controlied
by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to the Sunday clesest to 31 December each year. Control Is achieved

where the Company has the power fo govem the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain
benefits from its acthvities.

The resuits of subsidiares acquired or disposed of are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprahensive
Income from the effective dale of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary
the accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed o ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are sliminated on consolidation.

{c} Golng concern

The Company's and the Group's strategy, business activities and review, together with the factors likely to affectits
future development, performance and financial position are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 210 5. The
improved capital structure following the December 2015 reorganisation simplified the capital and debt for the group
which left anly a sharehoider [oan on the balance sheet and all share capital being owned by the parent entity who
confinue to support the group. Togethar with the UK's E18m invoice finance facilty and the A$20m facility In
Australig, the Group has adequate financing for the foreseeable future. Principal risks and uncertainties are
described on pages 4 ta 5. In addition, the Group has certain contingent liabilities, as describad in Note 22 to these
financial statements.

The Group prepares regular business forecasts and monitors its projected cash flow requirements. The forecasts
are reviewed by the Board. They are then flaxed to raflect mare conservative views on revenues and marging, and
take into account potential management aclions fo contain costs in these circumstances.

These forecasts indicate that the Group plans to operate within its current facilities for the foreseeable future, being a
period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of thig financial information. The forecasts assume no
liability in respect of the US litigation during the review period, nor in respect of any of the other contingent iabilities
described in Nate 22.

Having taken account of the above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
will have access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statemaents,

(d) Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acguisition method. The consideration for
each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed and equily instruments Issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquires. Acquisition
related costs are expensed as inclired.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or lisbility resulting from 8 contingent
consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair values ars
adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they quazlify as measurement period adjustments (see below). All ather
subsaquent changas in the fair value of contingent consideration ciassified as an asset or liability are accountad for
in accordance with relevant IFRSs. Changes in the fair value of contingemt congideration classified as equity are not
recognised.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condilions for recognition under
I[FRS 3{2008) are recognised at thelr fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

+ deferred tax assets or liabilittes and liabilities or assets related 10 employee benefit arrangements are
recognised ard megsured In accordance with 1AS 12 — income Taxes and 1AS 19 ~ Employes Benefits
respectively; and

« liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment
awards are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment,

The measurement period is the peried from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete
information about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition dats, and is subject to a maximum of one

year.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{¢} Revenuerecognition

Revenue represents the amounts earned from the provision of services to external customers during the reporting
period — the time of provision of services being the point at which the amount of revenue can be measuned reliably
and when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group. Revenue ks stated at involced amounts less
value added tax or local taxes on sales, plus revenue eamed but unbilied which is included as accrued income in
trade and cther recsivables.

Revenue from temporary placements, which represents revenue for the services of temporary staff, is recognised
when the services have been provided. Revenue includes the salary costs of the temporary staff unless paid directly
by the client in which case revenue represents commission only.

Revenue from permanent placements is recognised at the date when a candidate commences work. Appropriale
provision is made for the expected cost of meeting obligations where amployees do ot work for the specified
contractual period.

{fi Foreign currency

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are transiated into Sterling at average rates. All assets and
liabilities of overseas operations, including goodwill arising on the acquisition of those operations, are translated at
the rate ruling at the periad end. All exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the transiation reserve.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency {foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions, At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevsiling at that date. Non-monetary items carried at falr vaiue that are denominated in foreign
cumencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

{g} Employee benefits

Coniributions to the Group's defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they become payable.

The liability for Long Service Leave in respect of employeas in Australia is recognised by way of a provigion and
measured at the present vaiue of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
smployees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to
axpacted fulure wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future
benefits payable more than 12 months after the period-end are discounted using market yields at the end of the
reporting parod on national government bonds with terrns to maturity and cumrency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows. Where data specific enough to calcuiate a provision as described above
fs not avallable, provision is made for Long Service Leave on an estimated basis (Note 17).

{h} Taxation

The charge for current taxation is provided at rates of corporation tax that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Current tax is based on taxable profits for the year and any adjusiments to tax payable
in respect of previous years. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is provided, using the ligbility method, on all temporary differences which resulf in an obligation at the
reporting date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Temporary differences arise between the tax bases of
assels and labilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The exceptions, where deferred tax
assets are not recognised nor deferrad tax liabllities provided, are:

=  atiniial recognition of goodwill;

s the initial recognition of an asset or liability in 3 wansaction that is not 3 business combination and, a1 the tme
of the fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss; and
» taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference can ba controlied and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of defermed tax assets is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it Is no
tonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availabie to aliow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utifised.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{(} Goodwll

Goodwill arlsing in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is acquired (the
acquisition date). Gooowill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest (if any) in
the entity over the net of the acquisition-date emounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the Habilities assumed.
If after reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net asscls exceeds the sum
of the consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquirea and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquirea (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to 2ach of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount, being the value in
use or — where reliably measurable - fair value less costs to sell, of the cash-generating unit s less than the carrying
amount of the unii, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the camrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other asssts of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is Inciuded in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.
(i} Other intangibie assets

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) acquired by the Group as part of a business combination are stated at fair
value and are amortised on a siraight-line basis over their expected useful lives, commencing on the date they come
into use. The amortisation is shown as part of operating expenses within the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income,
Intemally generated intangible assets arising from the Group's development of software are recognised only if all of
the following condificns are met:

*  an assetis created that can be identified;

*  itis probable that the asset created will generate fulure economic benefils; and

the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Customer relationships - Over ths contractual term or & years in the absence of a specified
term

Contractual rights - Qver the estimated useful life of 2-5 years

Computer software - 3toSyears

Acquired candidate database - 3io 10 years

Brandsftrademarks - 20 vyears

Non-compete agreements - Syears

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, with indefinite lives are subject 1o impairment tesis whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying smount may not be recoverable. When the carrying amount of
an assgel excaeds its recoverable amount, being the value in use or — where reliably measurable - fair value less
costs {o sell, the asset is writien down accondingly. Impairment of other Intangible assets Is included in total operating
expenses as a highlighted item in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income.

{k) Property, plant and equipment

ltemns of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. As well as the purchase price, cost includes
directly attributable costs. All items are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment loss,

Depreciation is provided on a siraight-line basis to write off the cost, less estimated residual values, of property, plant
and equipment over their expected usaful lives. It is calculated at the following rates:

improvements lo leasehold buildings - Over the lease term
Office and computer equipment - 3t Byears
Motor vehicles - dyears

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount # the carrying amount is greater
than its estimatad recoverable amount.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{  Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset i5 assessed at sach reporting date to determine whether there is any cbjactive evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events has
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. For ¢ertain categorias of finandial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impaimment on a collective basis. Objective svidence of impairment for & portfolio of receivabies could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio, as
well as observable changes in nationsl or local economic conditions that correlate with defaulls on receivables.

The carrying antount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a trade recsivable is considered uncollectible, it Is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously provided for are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account ars recognised in the profit and loss.

{(m) Leased assets

Where substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been fransferred to
the Group (s 'finance lease’), the asset is treated as if it had been purchased outright. The amount initially
recognised as an assel is the lower of the {air value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments payable over the term of the lease, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding
lease commitment Is shown In the Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the finance lease obligation so as to
achigve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immaediately in the profit or loss.

All other leases are treated as operating leases. Their annual rentals are charged to the Profit and Loss account on a
straight-ine basis over the term of the lease.

{n) Sales ledger credits

From time to time in the United Kingdom the Group recelves payments which are in excess of the amounts which the
Group's accounting records show as due. The reasons include duplicate payments, credit notes not taken by
customers and payments by customers who are *seif billing” which ara higher than our calculation of the amounts
due. These matiers ars investigated and wherever possible the overpayments are resolved with the paying client and
appropriate accounting entries made. If, after actively saeking to resclve the balance, it remains unresolved beyond
the period set out in the Statute of Limitations (six years}, the amount is credited to the profit or loss. The balance of
sales ledger credits at the period end Is shown within creditors.

{0} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's Statement of Financial Fosition when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

The Group dlassifies its financial assets and liabilities into one of the following categories, depending on the purpose
for which the asset or liability was acquired. The Group's accounting policy for each category is as follows:

Financial asses:

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of services 1o customers {trade receivables). They are initially
recognised at falr value plus transaction costs and subsequently at amortised cost. Impairment provisions are
recognised where there is evidence that the Group will be unable to collect alt of the amounts due under the terms of
the receivable. Trade receivables are reported net of Impairment provisions, which due to the nature of the customer
base are not significant. The Group’s receivables that are financial assets comprise trade and other receivables,
excluding prepayments, in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafis. Bank
overdrafts are shown within current liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and are included
within cash and cash equivaients for the purposes of the Consolidatied Statement of Cash Flows.

Derivative financlal instruments:

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the dale a derivative coniract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value through the profit and loss unless the derivative is designated in a hedging
relationship.

There were no new derivative financial Instruments entered into during the 52 weeks ended 1 January 2017 that
were effective hadgaes and thersfore hedge accounting was not applied.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other financiai liabilities:

Trede payables and other shori-term monetary liabilities: These are initially recognised at fair vaiue and
subsequently at amortised cost.

Zero coupon loan notes: These are initially recognised at fair value, being the present value at the time of issue of
future cash payments to extinguish the instrument. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
affective Interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effactive yield basls.

8% coupon ioan notes: These are inftially recognised at nominal value at the date of issue. Interest is then charged
using the effective interest rate methad that compounds the loan note balance over the pedad of time until the loan
note matures,

The sffective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected iife of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the nat carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Bank and other borrowings: These liabilities are initially recognised at the amount advanced net of any fransaction
gosts directly attributable to the issue of the instrument. The costs of raising the financing are offset against the loan
g@mount and are amortised over the term of the loan and are included within finance costs on the face of the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. When loans are refinanced, drawings under the existing facilities
are either extingulshed or modified. Where facilities are extinguished the balance of unamortised fees are written off
to Finance Expense. Where madified, the unamortised fees are carried forward In the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position to be written off over the term of the modified faciiities,

(p} Provislons and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised whan the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it Is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be rmade of the
amount of the obfigation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
ohbiigation at the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, taking into accourst the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

Obligatlons arising under onerous contracts are recagnised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract s
considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable ¢costs of meeting the obligations
under the confract excead the economic benefits axpected o be received under it.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detalled formal plan for the restructuring
and has raised a valid expectation In those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision Includes
only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily
ertailed by the restrucluring and nol associated with the ongoing activities of the Group.

Contingent ltabilities are possible obligations which arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
ofnly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. Provision Is not made for any liability which coutd arise in the future, but significant contingent liabilities are
reported in Note 22,

{q) Share capital

Financial instruments Issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the axtent that they do not meet the definition
of a financial liabilty. The Group's ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity instruments.

{r) Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a iabllity in the vear in which they are declared and approved by the Company’s
sharehoiders In the annual general meeting, Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid.

{s} Parent company

The Financial Statements of the parent company Healthcare Locums Limited have been prepared in accordance with
FRS 101. The Company Financial Statements are presented separately on pages 40 to 51.

(t)  Highlighted items

Where certain items of operating expense or incoma recorded in a period are material by their size or incidence, the
Group reflects such items ss hightighted items and these are shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income and disclosed in detall in the Notes to the Financial Statemsnts. Highlighted items may
include costs associated with restructuring the business, incremental costs of staff working directly on restructuring
and refinancing, one off gains and losses, impairment of goodwill and intangible assets. In addition amounts of
finance income or expense which are materal by thelr size or incldence are disclosed in detail in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{u} Adjusted operating proflt and adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted operating profit is operating profit before highlighted items. The Board considers adjusted operating profit to
be a better indicator of performance than operating profit as highlighted items, being exceptions! In their nature by
virtue of size or incidence, distornt the results of the underlying business. Adjusted EBITDA is adjusted operating profit
before charging depreciation and amortisation.

(v} Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions regerding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated based on historicel experlence and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and
assumplions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carmying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year are discussed befow.

Measurement of intangible assets. The allocation of the purchase price for acquisitions requires management
to make significant estimates in determining fair values, especially for intangible assets and, until finally
determined, confingent consideration. These estimates are based on historical experience, information
cbtained from the management of the acquired businesses, relevant market and industry data and the forecast
performance of the acquired businesses. These estimates can include, but are not limited to, the cash flows
that an asset (s expected to generate in the future, the appropriate discount rate and the usefu! lives of
intangible agsets. These estimates are inherently uncertain and unanticipated events and circumstances may
occur, which may atfect the accuracy or velidity of such estimates. Management monitors the carrying values
of assets and adjusiments are made if anticipated future market conditions indicate thet such edjustments gre
appropriate.

fmpairment of goodwilf and intangible assets. The Group is required to test, on at least an annual basis,
whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. The recovarable amount is determined based on the higher of
value in use calculations or the fair value less costs to selt method, These both require the estimation of future
cash flows and the choice of a discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows. Actual
cutcomes may vary. More information on the camying amount of goodwill is included in Note 11 and 12.

Contractual claims and requiatory contingencies. The Group conducts its business principaily in the UK and
Australia and contractual claims or regulatory proceedinigs may arise, The Group estimaltes and provides for
potential losses that may arise out of litigation and regulatory proceedings to the extent that such losses are
probable and can be estimated in accordance with IAS 37 — Provigions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets. Contingencies in respect of these matters are subjact to many uncertainties and the outcome of
individual matters is not predictable with assurance. Significant judgment is required in assessing probability
and making estimates in respect of contingencies, and the Group's final liability may ultimately be materially
different from that estimated. Provisions in respect of legal claims, contraciual and regulatory proceedings ate
determined on a case by case basis and represent an estimate of probable losses after considering, among
other factors, the progress of sach case, the Group's experience of others in similar cases and the views of
legal counsel. Whera no estimate can be reliably made of the likely outcome of any claims, and they are
potentialty material, those claims are disclosed as contingent liabilittes (Note 22).

Uncertain tax positions. Uncertain tax posifions may arise where the Directors have had to make particular
judgments In relation to certain tax treatments. Based on the status of enquiries with the relevant tax authorities
and consideration of tax legistation, the Group estimates and provides for potential losses that may arise from
uncertain income tax positions to the extent that such losses are probable and can be estimated, in
accordance with IAS 12 - Income Taxes. However, significant judgment is required in making these estimates,
particularly in relation {c the recovery of losses, and the Group's final liabilities may uitimately be materially
differant.

Estimation of usefuf economic lives of long-fived assets. The economic life used to amorifise intangible assels
and depreciate property, plant and equipmant relates to the future performance of the assets in question and
management’s judgment of the period over which the economic benefit will be derived from the asset.

As at 1 January 2017, the amount of property, plant and equipment included in the Consolidated Staternent of
Financial Position was £0.7m (2015: £0.9m).

As at 1 January 2017, the amount of intangible assets included In the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position was £23.2m (2015 £21.9m).

Employee benelits provision. In Australia employees, including locums, are entitled to long service leave after
10 years senvice (subject to specific rules and conditions which vary state by state). In determining the amount
of the employee benefils provision, representing the value of expecied future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the
Directors consider salary levels, the past experience of employee departures and periods of service. As at 1
January 2017, the amount providad for in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position was £3.1m {2015:
£2.5m) (Note 17).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Zaro Coupon Loan Notes. The Zero Coupon Loan Notes were issued during 2011 as part of a Refinancing.
The nominal value of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes was discounted to fair value at a rate of 15% which the
Directors considered fairly represented the return a non-senior fender would seek from the Company for a loan
maluring in September 2021. The Zero Coupon Loan Notes were converted to share capital in 2015. No gain
or loss was racognised in the profit and loss.

8% Coupon Loan Notes. The 8% Coupon Loan Notes were initially issued during 2013 as part of the
Refinancing agreement which were followed by subsequent issues during 2014 when the need for working
capltal arose. The nominal value of the 8% Coupon Loan Notes was discounted 1o fair value at a rate of
approximately 18% which the Directors considerad fairty represented the retum a non-senior lender would
seek from the Company for a loan maturing in September 2021. All remaining 8% loan notes were converted to
share capital during 2015, No gain or loss was recognised in the profit or loss,

Shareholdsr L oans. The shareholder loans were originally issued during 2014 to enable the group to negotiate
a seltiement of the outstanding loan amounts owed to two Australian banks. At the end of 2016 these loans
were extinguished and a new loan agreed. The loans have been provided to the group on an amm's length
basis and state the interest to be either 10% or 12% and also define the repayment date. The board consider
the tarms of these ioans to be on par with market rates at the time they were issued as well as reasonable
when considering the status of the group and the terms of the agreement.

In order to facilitate the extinguishment of the old loan and creation of the new the company incurred a
financing fee from the lenders. The lenders are the ulimate shareholders of the company but for this
transsction they are seen as financiers so the fee is not classed as an equity transaction, The fee is therefore
included in the profit and loss account under finance costs.
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4 EMPLOYEES

52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
£m £m
Staff costs (including Directors) comprise:

Wages and salaries 222 19.8
Soclal sacurity costs 1.8 1.6
Long service leave costs 0.1 0.1
Defined contribution pension costs 42 10
25,3 225
52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
The average number of employees during the year was 498 483

5 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
52 weeks 53 weeks
ended endad
1 January 3 January
2017 2018
Em £m

Directors' remuneration consists of:
Emoluments 1.1 1.1
Bonuses 0.2 -
1.3 1.1

The Board has determined that the Directors are the key management parsonnet.
Pension contributions were paid in the year amounting to Enil (2015: £4,635).
The remuneration of the highest paid Director, inciuding benefits, was £471,000 (2015: £361,000).

During the year the axecutive board members and the senior management joined a ‘Management Incentive
Plan' {MIP). For the UK members of the scheme each individual was gifted an aliocation of shares in the
parent company, Angel Acquisitions Ltd and as this scheme fell under the Employee Share Scheme (ESS)
rules the only transactions were for the individual members pay personal tax and Ni on the value of the
those shares. HCL loaned 50% of these costs to the members of the scheme interest free which will be
repayable over 5 years In equal instalments. The members of the scheme who reside in Australiz could not
be includad in the ESS and therafore paid for the shares there were aliotted at a value that was
independently calculated and agreed. These members were also provided an interest free loan from the
company which is repayable over 5 years.

The Directors, and their close family members, are related parties of the Company. Other than as disclosed
above there are no other transactions 1o report with the Directors or their close family members.
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6 NET EXCEPTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES

52 weeks 53 weeks
anded ended
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
£m £m

Exceptional operating {income) / expense:

Reorganisation and refinancing costs:

Restructuring & refinancing costs 0.1 0.4
Restructuring - employee costs 0.2 0.2
Lease buy out and other property costs 0.1 -
0.4 0.6
Start up costs - Defence confract Australia 0.5 -
Care business acquisition expenses - 03
Release of unpaid green slips (.) {0.1)
Parent company success fee in connection with debt forgiveness . 0.7
Neot exceptional operating expenses 0.8 1.5

The most significant exceptional operating expenses for the year ware those costs incurred in Australia to
make ready the business to take on & newly won defence contract to supply all of Australia's army bases with
healthcare personnel. The other costs are made up of amourits relating to staff issues, property or
restructuring, There was then an income recognised for the release of accrued green slips that were no

longer deemed payable.

7 LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations for the year has been arrived at after charging the fallowing:

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended

1 January 3 January

2017 2016

£m £m

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 12) 4.3 2.8

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {Nots 13) 0.4 0.5

Management charges (Note 25} 1.6 1.6

Hire of other assets — operating leases 17 1.9
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for:

- audit of the Company's annual accounts 0.1 -

- audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 0.1 0.1

- tax advisory services 0.1 0.1
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8 FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE

52 weeks 53 wesks

ended ended

1 January 3 January

2017 2016

Finance income Em Em

Other - 62

Debt forgiveness - 19.3

- 19.5

52 waeks 53 weeks

ended ended

1 January 3 January

2017 2016

Finance expense £m £m
Excaptional finance expense:

Advisers and other fees regarding refinancing 2.9 0.2

29 02

Other bank fees and charges 0.2 -

Shareholder loan interest 1.2 1.0

Imputed interest on Loan Notes » 0.3

Imputed interest on Loan Notes - due to parent company - g7

Cther (4.1} 1.6

0.z 3.8

The Group does not apply cash flow hedge accounting to dervative financial instruments. Accordingly, all
changss in the fair values of dertvative financial instruments are recogrnised in the Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income.

The finance expenses in the year include a refinancing fee of £2.9m which relates to the restructure of the
sharehelder loan, see note 18 for details. There was £1.2m of interest charged on the shareholder loan
which was also rolled up into the balance. Finally there is a credit of £4.1m that relates to foreign exchange

movements on the intercompany loans between the UK and Australia.

There was no finance income during 2018 but the significant itern included In the finance income in the
prior year was the debt forgiveness. This was shareholder debt that had been purchased by the

sharsholders from third parties.
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9 TAX BENEFIT

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended

1 January 3 January

2017 20186

Em £m

UK corporation tax - current year - (0.3}

Overseas tax - current year 0.4 -

Current tax 0.4 {0.3)
Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences {0.8) (0.8)

(0.6 (0.8)

Total tax (benefit} on continuing operations {0.2) (1.1)

The tax (benefit) assessed for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for the

52 waeks ended 1 January 2017. The differences are explained below:

52 weeks 53 weeks
anded ended
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
Em £m
{Loss)/profit before taxation (1.8) 11.1
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20.0% (2015:
20.25%) (0.4) 22
Effects of.
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.6 0.5
income not taxable for tax purposes (0.8) (8.3}
Fixed asse! differances 0.1 0.2
Liilisation of unrecognised tax losses {0.2) (0.2
Prior period adjustments - 0.1
Movement In unrecognised deferred tax 0.5 {0.1)
Movement In UK deferred tax rates - 0.8
Impact of overseas tax rates - 1.7
Total tax {henefit} for the year (0.2) {1.1)
Represented by:
Tax on continuing operations {5.2) (1.1
(0.2 {1.1)
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10 DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not propose an interim or final dividend for 2016 (2015: no interim or final dividends).

11 GOODWILL

Total

£m

Cost:
At 28 December 2014 83.7
Additions 0.2
Disposals {2.8)
Effect of movements in foreign axchange {0.6)
At 3 January 2016 80.5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 24
At 1 January 2017 82.9
Impairment:
At 28 December 2014 733
Disposals (2.8}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {0.6)
At 3 January 2018 69.9
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 24
At 1 January 2017 72.3
Carrying amount:
At 1 January 2017 10.8
At 3 January 2016 10.6

The cammying amount is attributable to the following cash generating units ("CGUs") which are individual

businesses with separately ideniifiable cash flows:

1 January 3 January

2017 2016

£m £m

UK - Allied Heaith Professionals 2.0 20
UK - Nursing 8.4 84
Australia - Care 0.2 0.2
Total 10.6 10.6

Each of tha CGUs are reporied as separate segments to the chief operating decision maker.
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11 GOODWILL (continued)

At 1 January 2017 goodwill and intangible assets were tested for impalrment. Whan budgating, the Group
prepares both base case figures reflecting management expectations, and & lower range budget reflecting
the Impact of a range of factors such as reduced revenue growth rales, reduced marging and delays in
new initiatives to boost revenues or reduce costs. The recoverable amounts of the above segments, and
the intangible assets, were detemmined from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections from
the 2017, 2018 and 2019 forecast and estimates for subsaguent years.

In the UK the NHS intreduced caps on pay rates and charge rates for kocum provision. The caps wers
introduced in three stages from November 2015 up to April 2016 these caps were designed to cut the
locums that were working in trusts on an 'off framework' rate but it was expected that this would also have
an effect on the locum business as a whole. While the Company did notice a fall in revenues from these
caps being introduced HCL was in & strong position as the majority of the locum workforce were already
working to framework rates. The business also Improved efficiencies across all the trading divigions as
was able to significantly improve the EBITDA for locum business year on year. The AHP business is
expected 1o grow at 5% for 2018 and 2019 and the Nursing business is expecling growth of 7.5% & 10%
for 2018 and 2019 respectively.

The judgement of the Board is that no impairment of the assets is required. In the case of the UK, this
Judgement is sensitive to tha assumed growth in gross profit.

In determining the discount rate consideration was given to the Group weighted average cost of capital
{"WACC"). The key assumptions in the calculation of the WACT were;

* Risk-free rate - 1.56% (2015: 1.65%)

+ Equity rmarket risk premium - 6.0% (2015: 6.0%)
* Beta - 1.00 (2015: 1.00)

= Small stock premium - 4.0% (2015: 4.0%)

= Gross cost of debt 5.4% (2015: 5.4%)

+ Expected long-term tax rate - 17% UK, 30% Australia (2015: 20% and 30%)

Use of those assumptions gave a pre tax WACC of 14.6% (2015: 14.8%) which equates to a post-tax
WACC of 10.8% for the UK and 11.2% for Australia {2014: 10.8% and 11.2% respectively).

Reviewing the anticipated cost of the new funding being raised, as an indicator of the most up to date cost
of capital, suggested the WACC was not the most reliable basis for calculating the discount rate to use,
and as a result the calculstions were done using a pre-tax discount rate of 14.6% In the UK and 16.0% in
Australia (2014: 14.6% and 156.0% respectivaly).

The assumptions as to long term growth rates were 2.0% in the UK and 2.5% In Australia (2015: 2.0% and
2.5% respectively). These rates are consistent with forecasts of economic growth in the respective
countries.
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12 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Non-
compets &
Acquired Invoice
Customer Computer candidate Brandsand Customer finance
relationships software  database trademarks contracts agreemsnis Total
£m Em £m £m £m Em £m
Cost:
At 28 December
2014 19.4 35 7.4 224 - 03 527
Additions - 1.8 - - - 0.1 1.7
Additions from
business acquisition - - - - 2.5 - 2.8
Own costs capitalised - 0.3 - . - - 0.3
Digposais - (0.3} - - - - {0.3)
Effect of movements
in foreign exchange (0.7 - {8.3) (1.1} - - (2.1}
At 3 January 20168 18.7 5.1 7.1 21.0 2.5 0.4 54,8
Additions 14 0.4 . - - - 1.8
Own costs capitalised - 0.4 - - - - 0.4
Disposals - (0.1) - - - - {0.1)
Effect of movements
in foreign exchange 26 0.1 1.1 37 0.5 0.2 8.2
At 1 January 2017 22.7 59 8.2 247 3.0 0.6 65.1
Amaortisation:
At 28 December
2014 13.7 1.8 4.8 11.1 - 0.3 317
Provided for the year 0.5 0.8 04 0.6 05 - 2.8
Disposals - (0.3} - - - - {0.3)
Effect of movements
in foreign exchangs (0.5} - {0.3) (0.5} - - {1.3)
At 3 January 2016 137 23 4.9 "2 8.5 0.3 kva:]
Provided for the year 0.8 1.4 0.4 0.7 1.0 - 4.3
Bisposaks - (0.1} - - - - {0.1}
Effect of movements
in foreign exchange 1.7 0.1 0.8 2.0 0.1 0.1 4.8
At 1 January 2017 16.2 37 6.1 13.9 1.6 0.4 419
Carrying amount:
At 1 January 2017 6.5 2.2 r& 10.8 1.4 0.2 23.2
At 3 January 2016 5.0 28 22 9.8 20 0.1 218

At 1 January 20117 computer software included £0.6m under construction (2015; £0.5m). The Group amortises
intangible assets from the date the assels are available for use.

The asset lives of the material intangible assets have been assessed at 20 years for brands and trademarks and 10
years for the main acquired candidate database. Customer relationships are amortised over the expected e of the
contracts. As at 1 January 2017 the remaining amortisation period for Customer Relationships & the acquired
Candidate Database was 8 and 5 years respectively. The amortisation period feft for the Brands and Trademarks
was 14 yaars. Customer contracts are amortised over the expected useful life of the contracts of 3 years,
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

improvemants Office and
to leaseholid computer
buildings equipment Total
Em £m Em
Cost:
At 28 December 2014 1.7 2.3 4.0
Additions 0.1 0.2 0.3
Disposals (0.7 (0.5) {1.2)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {0.1) (0.1} (0.2}
At 3 January 216 1.0 1.9 29
Addilions 01 6.1 0.2
Disposals - (0.3} {0.3)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - 0.1 c.1
At 1 January 2017 1.1 1.8 29
Depreciation and impairment:
At 28 December 2014 1.0 2.0 3.0
Provided for the year 0.2 0.3 0.5
Disposals (0.7} (0.6} {1.2)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (0.1} {0.2} {0.3)
At 3 January 2016 0.4 1.6 20
Provided for the year 0.2 0.2 04
Disposals - {0.3) (0.3}
_Effect of movernents in foreign exchange 0.1 . 0.1
At 1 January 2017 0.7 1.5 2.2
Carrying amount:
At 1 January 2017 0.4 0.3 0.7
At 3 January 2016 n.6 0.3 0.0
There are no assets included above held under finance leases.
14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
1 January 3 January
207 2016
£m Em
Trade receivables 27.4 241
Other racaivables 0.5 0.3
Prepayments 1.3 1.1
Arnounts owed from related parties 0.9 0.8
Accrued income 4.6 1.9
344 28.2

All amounts shown under receivables fall due for payment within one year. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables and the amounts denominated in currencles other than Sterling are set out in Note 19. There
are no diferences between the camrying amount and the fair value of the trade and other receivables at

either reporting date.
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15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

1 January 3 January

2017 2016

Em £m

Trade payables 2.2 1.9
Other loans 26 0.4
Other taxes and social security 3.6 28
Accruals 8.5 6.4
Deferred income 0.2 0.3
Sales ledger credits 1.6 1.8
Other creditors 8.4 5.3
251 18.0

There are no differences betwaen the carying amount and the fair value of the trade and other payables at

aither reporting date.

Other loans relate to revolving credit facilities (invoice discounting) over the trade recelvables. These
facilities are secured by a charge over the assets of the Group. The facilities bear interest at 1.75% over

local base rate. These facilities are repayable on demand.

18 LOANS AND LONG TERM BORROWINGS

1 January 3 January
2047 2016
Em Em
Current portion of long-term debt
Sterling denominated:

Sharehoider loans - 1.1
Total current borrowings - 1.1
Non-current:

Sterling denominated:

Shareholder loans 216 17.5

Total non-current harrowings 218 17.5

There are no differences betwean the camying amount and the fair value of the ioans and long-term

borrowings at either date.

The Shareholder loans are stated at fair value, being the fair value recegnised at the date of Issue plus
imputed interest to 1 January 2017, These loans exert a fixed and floating charge over Healthcare Locums
Limited and all of its subsidiary companies. The charge covers afl assets {tangible & intangibie) of the

companies, shares, investment interests and Intellectual property.
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17 PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

Employes Total
benefits Leases provisions
£m £m £m
At 28 December 2014 21 0.7 2.8
Cradited to income statement 0.4 {0.2) 0.2
At 3 January 2018 25 0.5 3.0
Movement during the year:
Paid during the year {0.7) - (0.7)
Charged/{credited} to income statement 0.8 - c.8
Effact of movements in foreign exchange . 0.5 0.1 0.8
At 1 January 2017 31 0.6 3.7
At 1 January 2017
Current 26 - 2.8
Non-current 0.5 0.8 1.1
At 3 January 2016
Current 1.8 - 1.6
Non-current 0.9 0.5 1.4

Employee benefits provisions comprise long service leave bensfits of £2.4m (2015: £2.1m) and provision for
paid leave of £0.5m (2015: £0.3m) relating to the employees, including locums, of the Australian operations.

The lease provision at 1 January 2017 represents make goed costs on ocoupied properiies. The prior period
lease provision alse included payments to which the group was committed on previously vacated properties.
Due to the relatively short time frame and the amounts invoived the provisions have not been discounted as
the impact would not be significant.
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18 DEFERRED TAXATION

Other short

Intangibie term

Tax fixed temporary
losses assets differences Total
£m £m £m £m
At 28 December 2014 (0.4} 508 {1.4) 4.1
{Credited) / charged to profit or ioss 0.4 (0.8} (0.4) (0.8}
Foreign exchange adjustment - (0.2} - {0.2}
At 3 January 2016 . 4.9 (1.8} 31
{Cradited) / charged to profit or loss {(Nole 9) - {0.5) (0.1} (0.8)
Foreign exchange adjustment - 0.8 (0.3} 0.5
At 1 January 2017 “ 52 {2.2} a0

During the year Finance Act 2018 was ‘subistantively enacted’ and 'fully enacted’ on 6 and 15 September
2018 respactively. As a result the corporation tax retes were confirmed to be 19% for the financial years
2017, 2018 and 2019 and 17% for financial year 2020. Deferred tax has therefore been calculated on UK
and Australian temporary differsnces at 17% and 30% respectively (2045: 20% and 30% respaclively).

The ansalysis of the net deferred tax balance between deferred tax assets and deferrad tax liabilities is as

follows:

1 January 3 January
2017 2018
£m £m
Represented by deferred tax liability a0 31

There ars unrecognised deferred fax assets in respect of the following items:
3 January 28 December
2046 2014
£m £m
LK tax losses 6.8 6.4
Decelerated capital allowarces 0.5 0.7
Total 7.1 7.1

Deferred income tax assels are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profils is probable. The group did not recognise the deferred income tax assets

disclosed above. None of the tax lesses have an expiry date.

There are no temporary differances in relation to unremitted eamings of overseas subsidiaries.
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial instruments as at 1 January 2017 comprise shareholder loans, cash, ade and other
receivables and payables. Balances at the year-énd for these financia| instruments were as follows;

Financial assets

i January 3 January
2017 2018
£m Em
Current financial assets:

Trade and other recelvables excluding prepayments 331 271
Cash and cash equivalents 0.8 0.8
Total current financial assets 340 277

Analysed by currency {GBP equivaient):
Pound Sterling 14.4 15.5
Australian Dollar 19.8 12.2
34.0 27.7

Financial fiabilities
measuyred at amortised cost

1 January 3 January
2017 2018
Em £m
Current financiat Habilities:
Trade and other payables excluding deferred income and taxes 222 16.8
Current portion of long term borrowings - 1.1
Total current financial liabilities 222 16.9
Non-current financial liabilities:
Long term borowings 21.8 17.5
Total non-current financial liabilities 21.6 17.5
Analysed by currency (GBP squivalent):
Pound Sterting 3zs 235
Australian Doliar 11.0 7.9
438 34.4

The Group had no derivative financial iabilities at 1 January 2017 (2015: i},

The long term borrowings consist of a loan from the shareholders of Angel Acquisitions L1d. This loan bore
interest at 6% during 2016 and at the end of the financial period this loan was restructured with the result
being that the loan was extinguished. A new loan was then constructed which will bear imputed interest of
12% and will become due for rapayment as at December 2019. In order to complete the changes around

this loan a finance fee of £2.9m was charged and added to the balance.

itis, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's policy that no trading In financiat

instruments shall be undertaken.
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1% FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest risk), credit risk and lquidity risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of thesa risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

(i} Foreign exchange risk

There is an A$ denominated inter-company loan account between Healthcare Locums Limited and the
Australian sub-group which gives rise to exchange gains and losses booked in finance costs in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. As at 1 January 2017 the amount of A$40.4m (2015:
A$38.5m) was recorded as a receivable balance in Healthcare Locums Limited, At 1 January 2047 the rate
of exchange was £1 = A$1.703 (2015; £1 = A$2.019).

As at 1 January 2017, 58% (2015: 51%) of the total assets of the Group were held in subsidiary companies
outside the UK and denominated in currencies other than Sterding; principally in A$. Group policy is nof to
hedge the net investments in foreign operations as it does not consider that the reduction in foreign
currency exposure warrants the cash flow risk created from such hedging techniques.

If Sterling had been 10% stronger against the A$ during the year endad 1 January 2017, with all other
variables held constarnt, the post tax loss for the year would have been £0.03m lower (2015: post tax profit
£1.6m lower),

if Sterling had been 10% stronger against the AS al the year ended 1 January 2017, with all other variables
held constant, the debit to other comprehensive income would hava been £0,5m greater (2015; £0.4m
greater cradit).

{ii) interast rate risk

Market risk also arises from the Group's use of interest bearing financigt instruments, which expose the
Group to interest rate risk. The Group finances its operations through a mix of equity, invoice discounting
and shareholder loans. The interest rates applicabie {c the shareholder joans are fixed and not affected by
changes of external interest rate movemenis. As such the Group's interest rate risk is mitigated.

The invoice discounting facilities bear interast linked to local base rates,

{b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises principally from the Group's trade receivables and is the risk that the customer fails to
discharge its obligations in respect of the instrumenl. The Group's exposure to credit risk is considered to be
insignificant due to the heavy weighting of its cuslomer base in the UK towards NHS Trusts, Local
Authorities and other Government institutions and in Australia to public hospiiats and health providers,
Private sector customers are subject to credit checking procedures prior to commencing trade with therm.
The quality, and hence the low risk, of the customer base is siso shawn by the smalf amounts of overdue
debt.

The Group transacts with counterparties which it considers to be creditworthy.

Upto1 1to2
month months >2 months
Current overdue overdue overdue

Trade receivabies - 1 January 2017 £18.4m £7.3m £0.7m £0.7m
% of trade receivables per ageing
category ~ 1 January 2017 67.9% 26.9% 2.6% 2.6%
Trade receivables - 3 January 2018 £19.5m £3.1m E0.7m £0.8m
% of trade receivables per ageing
category — 3 January 2018 80.9% 12.9% 2.9% 3.3%

{c) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s management of working capital and the finance charges and principal
repaymaents on its debt Instruments. The Board receives regular cash flow projections.

Liquidity risk arises principally from the volume of revenua forecast and the potential for adverse outcomes

in litigation.

The factors considered by the Board in assessing going concem are set out in Note 3(c) and the Financial

Review.
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Gross, undiscounted liabilities are due as follows:

Due within Due in Due in Over
1year 1to2years 2to5years 5 years
£m £m £m £m
01/01/2017 Non-derivative financial
instruments - outflows
Long and short term borrowings - - 218 -
Trade and other payables excluding
deferred income and taxes 22.2 - - -
Total 222 - 216 «
03/01/20186 Non-derivative financial
instruments - outflows
Long and short term borrowings 1.1 17.56 - -
Trade and other payables exciuding
deferred income 156.8 - - -
Total 16.9 17.5 - -

The above lables summarise undiscounted cash flows based on the financial liabilities of the Group
outstanding at the year-end and assuming no changes in interest rates from the year-end rates. There are
no financial labilities payablie on demand.

Fair value estimation:

In the opinion of the Board, the carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities of the Group
approximate their fair values. There are no financial assets or liabilities held for trading purposes or any
investments classified as svailable-for-sale.

During 2016 the Group repaid a £1.1m working capital loan to its parent Angel Acquisitions Ltd. This loan
had incurred interest at 6% up to its repayment daie of 30 June 2018,

The long term loan relate to amounts borrowed from the shareholders of Angel Acguisitions Lid during
2014, This sum bears interest of 5% if settled in cash or 6% rolled up Into the loan balance. As at the end of
2018 this loan was refinanced and as a result the existing product was extinguished and a new loan put in
place. From 2017 this loan bears interest at 10% if settied in cash and 12% if rolled up into the balance and
is repayable as at the end of December 2019.

Capital risk management

The Group considers its capital to comprise its ordinary share capital, ghare premium, other reserves and
accumulated retained sarnings. In managing its capital the Group's long-term objective is to ensure its
¢ontinued ability to provide a growing retumn for its equity shareholders through a combination of capital
growth and distributions.

The Group has two invoice finance facilities in place. An £18m facility in the UK and a $20m facility in
Austrafia. Both facilities are limited by the trade debt attributable to finance. There are ai50 two covenants
applicable to these faciliies. In each jurisdiction the avallable funds In the facllites must not fall below a
calculated amount of two times the weekly locum payroll. This is calculated by taking the average weekly
payroll over 28 weeks, 13 weeks actual angd 13 wesks forecasted. The second covenant is that the Group
net assets (excluding shareholders debt) must not fall below £25m.
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20 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorlsed
1 .January 3 January 1 January 3 January
2017 2016 2017 2016
Number "000  Number '000 £m fm
Equity share capital
Ordinary shares of 10p each 1,209,398 1,209,368 120.9 1208
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1 January 3 January 1 January 3 January
2017 2016 2017 2016
Number '000  Number "000 £m £m
Fquity share capital
Ordinsry sharas of 10p each 1,209,398 1,209,398 120.9 1208

All the share capital is owned by the parent company, Angel Acquisitions Lid.

21 RESERVES
The share premium account represents ameounts subscribed for share capital in excess of the nominal vaiue
of the shares issued.

The equity & other reserves represent partly the falr value adjustment between the value of preference
shares issued and consideration received. As well as the tax equalisation effect on the receipt of tax religf
from the parent company.

The transiation reserve comprises foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
staternents of foreign oparations that are Integral to the operations of the Group.

The retained loss represents the cumuiative profit or logs recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, as adjusted for subsequent transfers to or from other reserves.

22 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Claims and litigation

From time to ime the Group and Company are in receipt of ¢laims from customers and employees arising
in the nomal course of business.

The following disclosures are made in connection with claims or exposures which the Directors consider
could represent material uncertainties.

Litigation « Permian et al

in September 2013 default judgment was obtained against the Company in respect of claims by various
US Investors that they had been induced to invest in and/or retain securities issued by HCL or instruments
linked to those securities on the basis of knowing or reckless misrepresentations by the Company and is
former dir2ctors conceming the Company’s accounting practices and operating results, The Company
had been advised by English Leading Counsel and by Australian Counsel that securing 8 default judgment
in the US was highly unlikely to result in any judgment belng recognised or enforceable in either the UK or
Australia because of lack of jurisdiction. At present, the Company is aware that a $7.1m liability sum has
been registered against it by the plaintiff Privet Capial and a $13.1m judgement has been registered
against it by Permlan. As the Company has not submitted 1o the US jursdiction or participated in the
litigation, it is not aware If further sums have been registered against it by any of the other claimants. The
Board continues to hold the opinion that the claims are without merit
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23 PENSIONS
The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes in the UK and Australia. There were no
outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or end of the financial year.

24 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
As at 1 January 2017 the Group had total commitments under non-cancefiable operating leases as set out
below:

Land and buildings

1 January 3 January
20%7 2016
£m £m

Operating jease commltments payable:
Under 1 year 1.8 1.6
1-2 years 0.9 1.6
2-5vears 0.9 1.6
Quer § years 01 0.1
3.7 4.9

The jeases on land and buildings range from six months to seven years and one menth in iength,

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The parent company Angel Acquisitions is directly owned by Ares Capital and Tosca fund. Therefore any
transactions with these entities are deemed as related.

Ares Capital Europe has charged £40,000 (2015: £40,000) for the services of Michael Dennis and Daniel
Sinclair as Directors. The services of Mark Phillips, who served as a director and is connected to Tosca
fund, were also charged to the accounts totalling £40,000 (2015; £40,000).

Ares Capital Europe and Toscz fund have charged £1,580,000 in respect of management fees for the year
ended 01 January 2017.

The Shareholder loans are jointly owned by Ares Capital and Tosca fund, During the year & fee of £2.9m
was added to the ioan in respect of axtinguishing the previous agreement and the subsequent
commencement of an agreement with amended terms. There was algo a further £1.2m of imputed interest
added to the loan balance. After a repayment of £1.1m the total of these loans is shown as £21.6m at the
end of the acocounting period (Note 16).

The key management personnel, whose cosis are disclaosed in Note 5, being Directors of the Company are
congsidered to be related parties. Note 5 includes all the relevant disclosuras of thoge related party costs.
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Healthcare Locums Ltd

PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 1 JANUARY 2017

1 January 3 January
2017 2018
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Fixed assets
Intangibie assels 28 2.1 2.7
Property, plant and equipment 28 0.3 04
investments 30 38 3.8
6.2 8.9
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 32 65.4 58.1
Cash and cash equivalents . 0.2
65.4 58.3
Total assets 71.6 65.2
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 33 {8.5) {5.7)
Current portion of lang term borrowings 35 - {1.1)
(8.5) {6.8)
Total assets less current liabilities 63.1 58.4
Craditers: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings 35 (21.6) {17.58)
Provisions 34 {0.2) (0.2}
{21.8) (17.7)
NET ASSEYS 41.3 40.7
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 38 120.9 120.9
Share premium account 39 55.2 55.2
Equity & other reserve 39 (20.8) {20.8)
Retained foss 39 {114.0) {114.6)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 413 40.7

The Notas are an inlagral pant of these Financial Statements,

The Financial Staternents of Healthcare Locums Limited, registered number 04736913, were approved and
risegl for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2017 and were signed on its behaif by:

-

Director
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Healthcare Locums Limited

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Share Egquity & Retained Total
capital premium other loss
reserve

Noles Em £m £m £m £m

Balance at 28 December 2014 107.3 55.2 {14.9) (121.2) 26.4

Ordinary shares converted from 20 B5 - (3.3) - 52
8% loan notes

Ordinary shares convertad from 20 5.1 - (2.9) - 22
0% loan notes

Transactions with owners 1386 - (8.2) - 7.4

Profit for the year - - - 8.6 6.6

Tex equalisation - - 0.3 e 0.3

Balance at 3 January 2016 120.9 55.2 (20.8) (114.6) 40.7

Profit for the year - - - 0.6 0.6

Balance at 1 January 2017 120.9 55.2 {20.8) (114.0) 413
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies ars summarised below. They have all been applied consistently
throughout the period and the preceding period.

{a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced disclosure framework and the Companias Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

{b) Turnover

Turnover represents the amounts earned from the provision of services to external customers during the
reporting period — the time of provision of services being the point at which the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow io the Company. Tumover is
stated at involced amounts less value added tax or local taxes on sales, plus ravenue earned but unbilled
which is included as accrued income in receivables.

= Turnover from temporary placements, which represents revenue for the services of temporary staff, is
recognised when the services have been provided. Tumover includes the salary costs of the temporary staff
uniess paid directly by the client in which case tumover represents commission only.

= Tumover from permanent placements is recognised at the date when a candidale commences work,
Appropriate provision fs made for the expected cost of mesting obligations where employees do not work
for the specified contractual period.

{c) Depraciation
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost, less estimated residual values, of all intangible and tangible
fixed asgets, evenly over their expected useful lives. It is calculated af the following rates:

Improvements to leaseholkd

buildings - Term of lease

Office and computer equipment - 3to8vears

Computer software - 3to5years
{d) Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the tex rates and laws that have
been enacted, or substantively enacled, by the balance sheet date.

In accordance with FRS 19, deferrad tax is provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation
at the balance sheet daie to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to
epply when they crystallise based on current rates and law. Timing differences arize from the inclusion of
items of income and expendilure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they are
included in financial statements, Deferrad tax assets are recognised to the extent thal it Is regarded as more
likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

{e) Valuation of Investmants

investments held as fixed assets are staled at cost less any provision for impsairment.

{f) Goodwill

Purchased goodwil in respect of the scquisitions of trade and assets of a business is capitalised. Goodwill
is amontised to nil by equal annual instalments over its estimated useful life,

(g) Impairmant

The Directors carry out impairment reviews annually or whenever an indication of impairment has been
identified, impairment charges are recarded in the Profit and Loss account,

The valuation of investments In subsidiary undertakings is calculated by reference to estimated future cash
flows of the relevant company discounted using an appropriate, risk adjusted, rate.

(h) Leassd assets

Where assels are financed by leasing agreements that give rights approximating to ownership (finance
leases"), the assets are treated as if they had been purchased outright. The amount capitalised is the
present value of the minimum lease payments payabla during the lease term. The corresponding leasing
commitments are shown a5 amounts payable to the lessor. Depreciation on the relevant assets is ¢charged
to the Profit and Loss account,

Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest components so that the interast elemant of the
payment is charged to the Profit and Loss account over the period of the iease and represents a constant
proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding. The capital part raduces the amounts payable
to the lessor.

All other leases are freated as operating leases. Their annual rentals are charged to the Profit and Loss
account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lgase.
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26 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
{1} Foraign exchange

Tumover generated and costs incurred by the Company in a currency other than the currency of the
primary econoemic environment in which it operates is recorded at the rates rnuling when the transactions
occur, Forelgn cumrency monetary assets and iiabilities are retransiated at the rates ruling at each balance
sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss account.

{i) Pension costs
Contributions to the Company's defined contribution pension scheme are charged to the Profit and Loss
account in the year in which they become payabie.

{k} Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group policy for provisions and contingent liabilities, s set out in Note 3(p), appiles equally to the
Company which has the same policy.

(1} Critical accounting judgements and key sources of gstimation uncertainty

The company makes estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. in the future, actual experience may
differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
¢ausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabillties within the next financial year
are discussed balow,

Recoverability of investments in subsidiaries and intercompany balances. The Company is required to test,
on at least an annual basis, whether the investments and intercompany balances present any indicators or
impairment. if such indicators exist, an impeirment review is required. The recoverable amountis
determined based on the future cash flows an estimate of the market value of subsidiaries. These both
require the estimation and the choice of a discount rate in order 1o calculate the present value of the cash
fiows. These eslimates are inherently uncertain and unanticipated events and circumstances may ocour,
which may affect the accuracy or validity of such estimates. Management monitors the carrying values of
assets and adjustments are made if anticipaied future market conditions indicate that such adjustments are

appropriate.

27 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
The profit after tax for the year dealt with in the financial statements of the Company amounts to £0.6m

(2015 profit: £6.6m). As allowed by the provisions of Section 408 of the Compaenies Act 2008 the Company
has not published its own Profit and Loss account.

Page |43



28 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Financing Computer

facility fees software Total
£m £m £m
Cost:
At 28 December 2014 - 23 2.3
Additions 0.1 1.7 1.8
At 3 January 2016 0.1 4.0 4.1
Additions - 0.5 0.5
At 1 January 2017 0.1 45 46
Amortisation;
At 28 December 2014 - 0.8 0.8
Provided for the year - 0.6 0.6
At 3 January 2016 - 1.4 14
Provided for the year 0.0 1.1 1.4
At 1 January 2017 0.6 25 2.5
Net book value:
At 1 January 2017 0.1 2.0 21
Al 3 January 2016 0.1 268 27
29 PROPERTY, PLANY AND EQUIPMENT
Improvements Office and
to leasehold computer
buildings equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost:
At 28 December 2014 0.2 0.8 1.0
Additions - 0.1 0.1
Dispozals - {0.3) {0.3)
At 3 January 2016 0.2 0.6 0.8
Disposals - {0.2} {0.2)
At 1 January 2017 0.2 0.4 0.6
Depreciation:
At 28 December 2014 {0.1) 0.6 0.5
Provided for the year 0.1 0.1 0.2
Disposals - (0.3) {0.3)
At 3 January 2016 - 0.4 0.4
Provided for the year 0.1 - 0.1
Disposals - (0.2) {0.2}
At 1 Janvary 2017 0.1 0.2 0.3
Net book value:
At 1 January 2617 0.1 0.2 0.3
At 3 January 2016 0.2 0.2 0.4
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30 INVESTMENTS

Shares in
subsidiary
undertakings
fm
Cost:
At 28 December 2014 56.4
At 3 January 2016 564
At 1 January 2017 6.4
Impairment:
At 28 Dacamber 2014 52.6
At 3 January 2016 52.8
At 1 January 2017 526
Net book value
At 1 January 2017 38
At 3 January 2016 3.8
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31 SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2008, a full list of the subsidiary undertakings of
Healthcare Locums Limited as at 1 January 2017 is disclosed balow. Unless otherwise stated:

- the principal operations of each subsidiary undertaking are conducted in its country of incorporation
- the shareholdings of each subsidiary undertaking refates to ordinary share capital and is equivalent to the

percentage of vating rights held by the Group

- the equity capital of each subsidiary undertaking is held through an intermediate company rather than

Healthcare Locums Limited

- the results of each subsidiary undertaking are consolidated within these financial statements for the 52

weeks ended 1 January 2017,
Incorporated in England & Wales

Name

BBL Medical Recruitment Limited

Blue Group Intemational Holdings
Limited

Biluecare Recruitment Holdings Limited
Biluecare Recruitment Limited

Bluetec Recruitment Limited

Fairstaff Agency Limited

HCL 1008 Limited

HCL Doctors Limited

HCE Dubal Limited
HCL GPs Lirnited
HCL Healthcare Limited

HCL Managed Services Limited
HCL Nursing Limited

HCL Parmanent Limited
HCL Social Care Limited
JCJ Dormant Limited
JCJ Group Limited

JCJ Holdings Limited
JCJ Locums Limited

MJV Locums Limited

Nurselink Wortdwide Limited
Recruitment Specialist Group Limited
Soclal Work Professionals Limited

Nature of business
Non trading
Holding company

Holding company

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Non trading

Framawork supply of professional services of statutorily
registered doctors

Non trading

Supply of professional sarvices of statulerily registered doctors
Framework supply of professional health services of
professionals and ancillary staff

Supply of managed services to the heaithcare market
Framework supply of professional servicas of statutorly
registered nurses

Supply of medical staff on a parmanent placement basis
Framework supply of professional services of social workers
Dormant

Holding company

Hoiding company

Oftf framework supply of professional services of statutorily
registered doctors, nurses, social workers, health professionals
and ancillary staff

Non trading

Non trading

Holding company

Dormant
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31 SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (continued)

Incorporated in Australia

Name

Acclaim Recruitment Pty Limited
ASEFS Pty Limited

Bell Health Pty Limited

Care Services Admin Pty Limited
Goongee Pty Limited

HCL Australia Holdings Pty Limited
HCL International Pty Limited
Health Employment Pty Limitad
Healthcare Australia (NZ) Pty Limited
Healthcare Australia Holdings Pty
Limited ("HCA")

Healthcare Australia Pty Limited

Nature of business
Nursing Agency

Nursing Agency

Nursing Agency

Admin staff for the business
Nursing Agency

Holding company

Supply of medical staff on a permanent placement basis
Nursing Agency

Nursing Agency

Holding company

Principal operating subsidiary of Healthcare Australia Holdings

Pty Ltd.
Healthcare Australia Recruiiment Pty Nursing Agency
Limited
Malvern Payroll Management Services Nursing Agency
Pty Limnited
NT Medic Pty Limitad Nursing Agency
Nursing Agency Australia Pty Limited Nursing Agency
Pacific Nursing Solutions Pty Ltd Nursing Agency
PNS {(PCC) Pty Limited Nursing Agency
PNS (QLD) Pty Limited Nursing Agency
PNS (Staffing Synergy) Pty Limited Nursing Agency
PNS (Vic) Pty Limited Nursing Agency
PNS Finance Pty Lirmnited Holding company
Select Health Services Pty Limited Nursing Agency
Whylyn Pty Limited Mursing Agency

Incorporated in United States

Name
HCL Intemational Inc

Hature of business
Non frading

The following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2008 reiating to the audit of
individual accounts by virtue of s4T9A of that Act:

Name:

HCL Doctors Limited

HCL Healtheare Limited

HCL Nursing Limited

HCL Social Care Limited

JCJ Locums Limited

HCL Permanant Limitad

HCL Managed Services Limited
1008 Limited (formerly MPS Healthcare
Limited!

Recruitment Specialist Group Limited
HCL GPs Limited

Nurselink Worldwide Limited

JCJ Group Limited

MUV Locums Limited

BBl Medical Recrultment Limited
JCJ Holdings Limited

HCL Dubai Limited

Biue Group Iriternational Holdings Limited

Registered number:

3069773
3496076
5680817
3710864
5790018
5790004
2273072

3988501
3216830
5130842
5804412
4469671
7305911
5716382
4402407
5755169
4171692

The above subsidiaries' outstanding liabilities at 3 January 2016 had been guarantead by the Company

pursuant to sections 476A-C of the Act.
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32 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

1 January 3 January

2017 2016

Em £m

Other debtors o6 02
Prepayments 0.5 0.7
Amaounts receivable from subsidiary undertakings 843 57.2
654 58.1

The net amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand and do not bear any interest.
All other amounts shown within trads and other receivables fali due for payment within one year.

33 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

1 January 3 January

2017 2016

£m £m

Trade creditors 0.1 0.1
Other loans & overdrafts 27 c4
Amounts due to parent company 0.1 -
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 18 2.4
Other faxes and soclal security 0.5 0.2
Accruals 1.3 1.4
Other creditors 2.0 1.2
8.5 57

All amounts due to subsidlary undertakings are repayable on demand and do not bear any interest,

34 PROVISIONS

Onerous

leases

£m

Al 28 December 2014 0.3

Charged / (credited) to profit & loss {0.1)

At 3 January 2016 6.2

At 1 January 2017 6.2
At 1 January 2017

Non-current 0.2
At 3 January 2016

Nori-current 0.2
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35 BORROWINGS

1 January 3 January

2017 2016

£m £m

Fair value at the beginning of the year 18.6 17.6
Loans repaid {1.1} -
Loan refinancing fee 29 -
Imputed interest in the year 1.2 1.0
Fair value at the end of the year 216 18.6

During the year £1.1m of the borrowings that were due to be repaid have been, there are no amounts due
within 1 year of this balance sheet date. Therefore the remainder of the borrowings are included within
noncurrent liabilities. Detailed information on the terms and conditions of the barrowings are given in Note

19 on page 35.
36 ZERO COUPON LOAN NOTES
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
£m £m
Fair value at the beginning of the year - 20
Imputed interest in the year - 0.3
Nates converted to prefersnce shares - {2.3)
Falr value at the end of the year - -
37 &% LOAN NOTES
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
£ £m
Fair value at the beginning of the year - 4.5
imputed interast in the year - 0.7
Notes converted to preference shares - {6.2}

Fair value at the end of the year

All loan notes were converted in the prior period.

The company no longer has instruments of this nature.
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38 SHARE CAPITAL

All details of the aliotted, called up and Rilly paid share capital, plus the movements during the prier

period, are set out in Note 20 1o the Group Financial Statements.

39 RESERVES

Share Profit and
pramium Equity foss
account resarve account
£m £m £m
At 28 December 2014 562 {14.9) (121.2)
Profit for the year - - 6.6
Tax equalisation - 0.3 -
Reserve movement on loan note capitalisation - {6.2) -
At 3 January 2016 55.2 (20.8) (114.8}
Profit for the year - - 0.8
At 1 January 2017 55.2 {20.8) {114.0)

40 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS iIN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
1 January 3 January
2017 2016
£m £m
Profiti{loss) for the year 0.6 6.6
Loan notes converted to share capital - 13.6
Equity reserve movement on loan notes converted to share capital - {6.2)
Add: Opening shargholders’ funds 40.4 2684
Closing shareholders” funds 41.0 40.4
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41 PENSIONS

The Company oparates a defined contribution pension scheme. There were no outstanding or prepaid
coniributions at either the beginning or end of the financial year.

42 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

Ag at 1 January 2017, the Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as set out
below:

Land and buildings _

1 January 3 January
2017 2018
Em £Em

Operating Lease commitmants payable:
Under 1 year 0.8 0.8
1-2 years 0.6 0.7
2 -5 years 0.9 1.5
Qver & years 0.1 0.1
24 3.1

43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Sea Note 25 to the Group Financial Statements for transactions with and balances due from and to related
parties. All the reporied transactions were with the Company.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Financial Reporting Standard 8 "Related
Party Disclosures” not to disclose transactions with members of the Group headed by the Company on the
grounds that 100% of the voting rights in the other members of the Group are controlled by the Company and the
resuits of all subsidiary undertakings are included in the Group Financial Statements.

44 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the mailn materiat contingent liabilities for the Company are set out in Note 22, In addition the Company
is party to the SFA and, as s result, is a guarantor of all borrowings of the Group. Details of Group borrowings
arg disclosed in Note 16.

As set out in Note 31 the Company has guaranieed the liabilities at 1 January 2017 of the named UK subsidiary
undertakings. The amounts receivable from subsidiaries at 1 January 2017, as sel out in Note 32, have been
impaired where there is a possibility that full settlement of group indebtedness will not be possible if externai
liabijities are settled in full.

45 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

Angel Acquisitions Lid, which at 1 January 2017 was the uitimate Parent Company, is registered in England and
Wales. The ultimate shareholders of Angel Acquisitions Lid are ACE Equity Holdco {Cayman) Lid {Ares) and
Tosca Opportunity neither of which is considered 0 have overall control.
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